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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.:
JOSE A. PEREZ, ARAYAN GARCES, and all
others similarly situated under 29 U.S.C. 216(B),

Plaintiffs,
V.

KRISPY KREME OF SOUTH FLORIDA LLC,
a Florida limited liability company,

Defendant.
/

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs, JOSE A. PEREZ and ARAYAN GARCES, on behalf of themselves and all
others similarly situated under 29 U.S.C. 216(B), through undersigned counsel, file this Complaint
against Defendant, KRISPY KREME OF SOUTH FLORIDA LLC (“Defendant”) and allege as
follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action by Plaintiffs against Defendant, their former employer, for unpaid
overtime pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) 29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq. Plaintiffs
seek damages and reasonable attorney’s fees, together with other relief.

JURISDICTION

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1331 because this case arises under the Fair Labor Standards Act 29 U.S.C. §8 201-216
(“FLSA™).

3. Venue is proper in the Southern District of Florida, pursuant 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)

because the claims arose here and the Defendant is subject to personal jurisdiction here.
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THE PARTIES

4, Plaintiffs, JOSE A. PEREZ (“PEREZ”) and ARAYAN GARCES (“GARCES”)
are citizens and residents of Miami-Dade County, Florida.

5. Defendant, KRISPY KREME OF SOUTH FLORIDA LLC is a Florida limited
liability company formed and existing under the laws of the State of Florida and at all times during
Plaintiff’s employment, was an employer as defined by 29 U.S.C. §203.

6. At all material times relevant to this action (October 2014 - present), Defendant
was an enterprise covered by the FLSA, and as defined by 29 U.S.C. 8203(r) and §203(s).

7. At all material times relevant to this action (October 2014 - present), Defendant,
made gross earnings of at least $500,000.00 annually.

8. At all material times relevant to this action (October 2014 - present), Defendant,
had two or more employees engaged in interstate commerce, producing goods for commerce, or
handling, selling or otherwise working on goods or materials that have been moved in or produced
for such commerce.

9. At all material times relevant to this action (October 2014 - present), Defendant had
two or more employees who routinely ordered materials or supplies from out of state vendors.

10.  Atall material times relevant to this action (October 2014 - present), Defendant had
two or more employees who used the telephone and/or computers to place and accept business
calls with out of state customers on a daily basis in the normal course of its business.

11. PEREZ has been an employee of Defendant since before October 2014 and is
currently an employee of Defendant. During his entire employment with Defendant has been
individually engaged in commerce as defined by 29 U.S.C. 88206(a) and 207(a)(1).

12. GARCES was an employee of Defendant from before October 2014 until July 2017

and was individually engaged in commerce as defined by 29 U.S.C. 88206(a) and 207(a)(1).
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13. Upon information and belief, the records, to the extent that any exist, concerning
the number of hours worked and amounts paid to Plaintiffs are in the possession, custody and
control of Defendant.

14.  All of Defendants’ actions alleged in this Complaint occurred in Florida.

GENERAL FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS PERTAINING TO PLAINTIFES

15. Plaintiffs PEREZ and GARCES were employed by Defendant as truck drivers.

16. Plaintiffs transported doughnuts and other food-items for Defendant between
locations in the state of Florida.

17. Plaintiffs” routes were limited to in-state routes within Florida.

18. Plaintiffs were compensated by Defendant on a commission basis based on the
amount of doughnuts and other food-items they transported during the week.

19. Thus, Plaintiffs’ regular rate of pay varied from week-to-week depending on the
amount of doughnuts and other food-items they transported during the week.

20. During their employment with Defendant both Plaintiffs customarily worked in
excess of forty (40) hour per week.

21. From October 2014 to sometime in the Spring of 2016, when Defendant changed
its payroll practices, Defendant failed to compensate Plaintiffs at the rate of one and one-half times
their regular rate of pay for those hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week.

22. During their employment with Defendant Plaintiffs worked an average of
approximately SIXTY-FIVE (65) hours per week.

23. Plaintiffs were required to “clock in” to record their hours and thus Defendant
should have an accurate record of the hours worked by Plaintiffs.

24. Indeed, to the extent that documentation concerning the number of hours worked

by Plaintiffs and the compensation actually paid to Plaintiffs exists, such documentation is in the
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possession and custody and control of Defendant.
25. Plaintiffs have retained the law firm of THE LAW OFFICES OF NEIL D. KODSI

to represent them in this matter and have agreed to pay the law firm a reasonable fee for its services.

COUNT I - FLSA OVERTIME WAGE VIOLATION

26. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate paragraphs 1 through 25, as if fully set forth
herein.

27.  Throughout Plaintiffs’ employment, Defendant repeatedly and willfully violated
Section 7 and Section 15 of FLSA by failing to compensate Plaintiffs at a rate not less than one
and one-half times the regular rate at which they were employed for workweeks longer than forty
(40) hours.

28. Defendant did not act in good faith or reliance upon any of the following in
formulating its decision to improperly compensate Plaintiffs their appropriate overtime rate for
hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week: (a) case law, (b) the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 201,
et seq., (c) Department of Labor Wage & Hour Opinion Letters or (d) the Code of Federal

Regulations.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs demand a judgment against Defendant for the following:
(a) Unpaid overtime wages found to be due and owing;

(b) An additional equal amount equal to the overtime wages found to be due and owing
as liquidated damages;

(c) Prejudgment interest in the event liquidated damages are not awarded:;
(d) A reasonable attorney’s fee and costs; and

(e) Such other relief as the Court deems just and equitable.
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COUNT 11 - VIOLATION OF 29 U.S.C. 8216(b)
STATUTORY COLLECTIVE ACTION FOR FAILURE TO PAY OVERTIME

29. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate paragraphs 1 through 28, as if fully set forth
herein.

30.  This case is brought as a collective action under 29 USC 216(b). It is believed that
the Defendant has employed several other similarly situated employees like Plaintiffs who have
not been paid overtime for work performed in excess of 40 hours weekly from the filing of this
complaint back three years.

31. Plaintiffs bring this count on behalf of themselves and other employees and former
employees of Defendant similarly situated for overtime compensation and other relief pursuant to
the FLSA.

32. The additional persons who may become Plaintiffs in the action are nonexempt
employees of Defendant who worked and, in some instances, continue to work in excess of forty
(40) hours during a work week and who were not paid one and one-half times their regular rates
of pay for the hours they worked in excess of forty hours as mandated by 29 U.S.C. §207.

33.  Atall times material hereto, Defendant failed to comply with Title 29 and United
States Department of Labor Regulations, 29 C.F.R. §8516.2 and 516.4, with respect to those
similarly situated to the named Plaintiffs by virtue of the management policy, plan or decision that
intentionally provided for the compensation of such employees as if they were exempt from
coverage under 29 U.S.C. §8201 through 219, disregarding the fact that they were not exempt.

34. Based upon information and belief, the employees and former employees of
Defendant similarly situated to Plaintiffs were paid straight time and expected to work in excess
of forty (40) hours per week without being paid at the rate of one and one-half times their regular

rates of pay for those hours exceeding forty (40) hours per week.
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35. Records, if any, concerning the actual number of hours worked by Defendant’s
employees and former employees and the actual compensation paid to Defendant’s employees and
former employees similarly situated to Plaintiffs are in the possession, custody and control of
Defendant.

36.  All similarly situated employees are owed their overtime rates for each overtime
hour that they worked, but were not paid at the statutory rate of one and one-half times their regular
rates of pay.

37. Due to the intentional, willful and unlawful acts of Defendant, all similarly situated
employees have suffered damages and will continue to suffer damages and incur attorney's fees
and costs.

38.  Asadirect and proximate result of Defendant’s willful disregard of the FLSA, all
similarly situated employees are entitled to liquidated damages in an equal amount to the amount

by which each similarly situated employee or former employee has been damaged.

WHEREFORE, those similarly situated employees and former employees who have or will
opt into this action demand that judgment be entered against Defendant:

a. Declaring, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 8207, that the acts and practices complained of
herein are in violation of the maximum hour provisions of the FLSA,

b. Awarding Plaintiffs overtime compensation due them for hours worked by them
but for which they have not been properly compensated.

C. Awarding Plaintiffs liquidated damages;

d. Awarding Plaintiffs reasonable attorney's fees and costs and expenses of the
litigation pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §216(b).

e. Awarding Plaintiffs pre-judgment interest; and



Case 1:17-cv-23835-FAM Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/18/2017 Page 7 of 7

f. Ordering any other further relief the Court deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to the provisions of Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
PLAINTIFF demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable in this matter.

DATED: October 18, 2017

/s/ Neil D. Kodsi

NEIL D. KODSI, ESQUIRE

Florida Bar No. 0011255

Email: nkodsi@ndkodsilaw.com
GUSTAVO A. BRAVO

Florida Bar No. 0551287

Email: gbravo@ndkodsilaw.com

THE LAW OFFICES OF NEIL D. KODSI
Two South University Drive, Suite 304
Plantation, FL 33324

Telephone: (786) 464-0841

Facsimile: 954-760-4305

Counsel for Plaintiffs
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